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ThaiBMA

About ThaiBMA

The Thai Bond Market Association (ThaiBMA) is a se-
curities business related association under the Secu-
rities and Exchange Commission Act B.E. 2535 (SEC
Act). Its main purposes are to be a self regulatory or-
ganization (SRO) for a fair and efficient operation of
the bond market and to be an information center for
the Thai bond market. It also plays functional roles
on market development, market convention and
standards and being bond pricing agency for the in-
dustry. In addition, ThaiBMA provides a forum through
which industry professionals can discuss and respond to
current issues and play a role in shaping the future of
the Thai bond market.

Background

Although ThaiBMA was registered as a securities
business related association with the SEC in September
2005, its origin dated back to 1994. In November
1994, the Bond Dealers Club (BDC) was formed under
the structure of the Association of Securities
Companies (ASCO). Main role of the BDC then was
a facilitator of infrastructure for bond trading by
introducing an electronic bond trading system, called
“Bondnet’, the first bond trading platform in the history
of the Thai bond market.

2005

1998w

ThaiBDC

After 3 years of its operation, BDC changed its legal
status to be in line with its membership structure and
to support a more expansive bond market. So, it was
restructured as the Bond Exchange under the SEC Act
and renamed “The Thai Bond Dealing Centre” (Thai
BDC) in April 1998. The primary roles of the Thai BDC
were to facilitate the operation of the secondary market
for bond trading and perform active roles in many areas
with regards to bond market development. One of its
missions was to move forward towards being efficient
self-regulatory organization (SRO) to oversee the orderly
function of the bond market.

ThaiBDC continuously expanded its functions and
played active roles in various areas of bond market
development. In December 2004, Bond Market Development
Committee chaired by the Minister of Finance initiated
bond market reform in Thailand. One of the measures
was to centralize securities trading platform by migrating
electronic trading platform owned by ThaiBDC to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) while ThaiBDC
would expand its full functions as the SRO and information
center for Thai bond market.

To reiterate its focus on SRO and information center
function, ThaiBDC, with the support from the SEC, was
granted the license of a securities related association
under the SEC Act and was renamed “The Thai Bond
Market Association” (ThaiBMA) on September 8", 2005.
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| Roles and Functions of ThaiBMA

Bond Information Center Pricing Agency

SRO Association Market Development
and Education

Self-Regulatory Organization (SRO)

ThaiBMA oversees and monitors the conduct of its members in order to ensure fairness and

efficiency in debt securities trading industry. It is committed to retaining the confidence of its

members, regulators and investors. SRO tasks comprise the following:

¢ Act as the front-line regulator to detect any fraud or unfair trading practices by performing
intraday market monitoring and post-trade surveillance.

¢ Executing onsite and offsite inspection to ensure that members comply with relevant laws
and regulations.

¢ Issuing rules and guidelines regarding debt securities trading and good market practice.
+ Responsible for bond trader examination and registration and provide traders with ongoing
education to enhance their professionalism.

+ Implement disciplinary actions and enforcement procedures.
4
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| Roles and Functions of

ﬂ Bond Information ]

Mandated as the sole information center for the Thai bond market, ThaiBMA collects, integrates and
processes the data from both the primary and secondary bond markets. It also develops financial
tools and information essential for the bond market and disseminates those information through its
website www.thaibma.or.th, and www.ibond.thaibma.or.th. Examples are;

Yield curve: ThaiBMA publishes various types of government bond yield curves and corporate yield
curve on a daily basis.

Bond information: ThaiBMA provides trading data, bond features, reference yields and relevant market
news and regulatory updates.

Financial data: ThaiBMA develops a wide range of financial and quantitative tools such as Bondindices,
Zero coupon yield curve, credit spread curve, key rate duration, bond portfolio analysis, Value-at-Risk
(VaR) to be used for bond investment and portfolio management.

n Association )

As an association of members, ThaiBMA represents collective voices of members and promote dialogues
among market participants to address issues affecting the bond market. ThaiBMA works actively with
bond market stakeholders on a comprehensive range of market practices and convention to create
and/ or enhance standards within the marketplace. Examples of standard issued by ThaiBMA are
bond symbols and standard formula for price/ yield calculation which have become common standard
in the market and for various types of bonds.

Pricing Agency

In the role of “Bond Pricing Agency”, ThaiBMA provides daily mark-to-market prices for investors. For
actively-traded bonds, the mark-to-market prices are based on trading and quotation information. For
illiquid debts securities and structured bonds, ThaiBMA develops model yield to be used as fair prices
and references for investors.

ﬂ Market Development and Education ]

ThaiBMA is committed to enhancing market development and market education. It advocates for efficient
bond market and initiates a number of studies to the benefits of thewhole industry. To expand investor
understanding of the bond market, ThaiBMA provides extensive seminars and training programs for
market participants and the general public. It also produces a comprehensive range of publications
for the benefits of those involved in the bond market.
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| ThaiBMA’'s BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2021

Name

1.  Mr. Sommai Phasee

Position

Chairman of the Board

Organization

The Thai Bond Market Association

2. Miss Wattana Tiranuchit

Vice Chairman of the Board

The Thai Bond Market Association

3. Mrs. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop

Vice Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer

DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand)
Company Limited

4. Miss Narumon Chivangkur

Managing Director, Thailand Head of
Global Markets and Securities Service

CITIBANK, N.A.

5. Mr. Sukkawat Prasurtying

Chief Executive Officer

AlA Investment Management
(Thailand) Limited

6.  Mr. Apichart Tungkiatsilp

Managing Director of Fixed Income
Department

KGI Securities (Thailand) Public
Company Limited

7.  Mr. Thitawat Asaves

Executive Vice President

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company
Limited

8. Mr. Rawin Boonyanusasna

Senior Executive Vice President,
Managing Director Global Markets
Group

Krungthai Bank Public Company
Limited

9. Dr. Bhume Bhumiratana

Cybersecurity product policy manager

Facebook Incorporated

10. Mr. Tanik Tarawisid

Executive Vice President, Head of
Capital Markets Function

Siam Commercial Bank Public
Company Limited

11.  Mr. Tada Phutthitada

Advisors to the Board of Directors

President

The Thai Bond Market Association

1. Ms. Daranee Saeju

Senior Director, Financial Markets
Department

Bank of Thailand

2. Ms. Chanunporn Phisitvanich

Senior Expert on Bond Market
Development, Bond Market Development
Bureau

Public Debt Management Office,
Ministry of Finance

ThaiBMA Members

Pursuant to the regulation of the SEC, a financial institution having debt securities dealing license is required
to be a member of ThaiBMA. Membership of ThaiBMA is divided into 3 categories:

Ordinary Member is a financial institution having debt securities dealing license (dealer).
Extraordinary Member is a securities company that has inter-dealer brokerage license (IDB).

Associate Member is a financial institution that has debt securities dealing license but remain to have average
monthly trading value in the past one year less than 100 million baht.

As of 31 December 2021, membership of ThaiBMA consists of 54 financial institutions, including banks and

securities firms.

Foriegn Banks,
7,13%

Local Banks,

13, 24% Securities

“ Firms, 34, 63%

Associate member, =
3,6% -

Ordinary member
(Dealer), 47, 87%

Extraordinary
member (IDB),

4, 7%
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ThaiBMA's
Highlights of Activities 2021

- Data Intelligence

* Product Innovation
- Service Excellence
- Building Resilience

ThaiBMA Annual Report 2021 e



| Data Intelligence

1.1 Big data analytics

ThaiBMA has established a central bond
database by integrating massive amounts TS PPN o o
of data from multiple sources, including = % .

primary and secondary market data, as well
as issuer financial data in order to analyze,
monitor, and process data quickly and
efficiently.

LT Corp Bond Issuance in 2021 10/5/2021

res

arts
lvuance by dIrSulon_type favuance by (vwue_term

1.2 Surveillance dashboard anywhere & trade investigation

To strengthen the secondary bond market's integrity, and fairness, ThaiBMA has developed a
“surveillance dashboard anywhere” to help examine real-time bond trading activity so that suspicious
fraudulent transactions could be discovered promptly.

The surveillance dashboard anywhere provides the surveillance team a secured access through mobile
and web services into secondary market data. It integrates and displays up to eight views of realtime
bond trading activity including trading by dealers, by investor types, by bonds and by time to maturity.
It can also provide interactive results across all views. Therefore, trade surveilance and investigations
can be enhanced and conducted in a timely manner at any time and in any location.
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| Product Inno

2.1 Implied credit rating

Although a credit rating is an assessment of a credit risk of a bond issuer, it sometimes is not able to
keep up with market fluctuations. ThaiBMA, therefore, has developed implied internal scoring system
that cover both rated and non-rated corporate bonds in order to reflect market movement as quickly as
possible.

The implied rating system was created to evaluate credit rating as a point-in-time. The realtime market
data movement and fundamental data were analyzed and employed in the system. The dashboard, or
data visualization, in Power Bl program was designed to present the results and make them easy to
monitor. The system was deployed in the fourth quarter of 2021.
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2.2 Life path bond and credit assessment ||

Life path bond

The life path bond project was created to track bonds’ activities starting from issuance until maturity
with the objective to enhance accuracy of the pricing model. For instance, credit spread of each bond
would be extracted and compared to the credit spread curve when pricing bonds at the issue date.
Survey data would also be incorporated in a model to determine a reliable outcome when bonds were
downgraded. Moreover, this approach can help in a pricing model in the case of arestructured or
defaulted bond.

ThaiBMA Annual Report 2021 0



| Product Innovation

Credit assessment ||

Phase Il of the credit assessment initiative is continued from the previous year as one of the key
components of ThaiBMA's bond pricing model. Using various business and financial data, ThaiBMA
has applied the Machine Learning (ML) approach to determine credit risks of corporate bond issuers.
Credit assessment for short-term bonds, which are considered having unique characteristics, is further
explored in this project. Different methodologies have been applied, and ML has been used for logical
test. Bond pricing is expected to better reflect market movement using these approaches.
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2.3 Bond trader E-testing system

The Covid-19 pandemic has highlighted the necessity of online procedures including E-testing for
bond traders. According to the SEC's regulation, an individual needsto pass an examination administered
by ThaiBMA to qualify as a bond trader. Therefore, ThaiBMA has developed bond trader e-testing system
to facilitate those candidates wishing to take the exam while all exam centers remain closed during
the pandemic. The E-testing system enables examinees to take exam from home and know the test
results immediately.

To ensure standards and reliability of the exam, ThaiBMA has set rules and requirements for the
examinee to comply with. ThaiBMA is also responsible for administering the exam, managing exam
database, and reviewing exam results to assure the quality of Bond Trader E-testing system.

MHUQN1sYaaoau Bond Trader (online)
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| Service Excellence

3.1 Develop market convention

ThaiBMA has revisited market conventions and issued guidelines to provide clarification on the interest
calculation and payment date, including the determination of the interest payment and principal payment
date, as well as method for computing the interest on debt instruments in case where the special holidays
are announced, and the payment date falls on February 29 on a leap year.

ThaiBMA has also established the coupon payment standards for the new corporate floating-rate bond
using Thai Overnight Repurchase Rate (THOR) as reference rate, as well as defined corporate THOR
bond convention. As the term interest rate for THOR bond is derived from compounding daily THOR for
the entire interest period, the interest rate is only known on the last day of interest period. Hence, the
convention suggested 5-day backward shift observation period as calculation convention to calculate
compounded THOR. This calculation convention enables the book closing date (XI date) to be fixed and
the interest rate to be determined 5 business days prior to the payment date. ThaiBMA has published
the information on ThaiBMA's website since the second quarter of 2021.

In addition, a bond registration and bond pricing system have been developed to support the more complex
new types of bonds such as THOR and Digital bonds.

& ThalBMA
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| Service Excellence

3.2 Provide ESG bond information

ThaiBMA has fine-tuned the ESG bond information platform on ThaiBMA's website by adding the list of
sustainability-linked bond issues, key features, referenced standard, and external review reports. This
platform serves as a one-stop information platform to facilitate investors’ access to the comprehensive
information on green, social, sustainability and sustainability-linked bonds.

As part of the latest update, the ESG platform also incorporated both regional and intemational standards
and guidelines governing the issuance and offering of the ESG bonds, for instance, ASEAN's Green and
Social and Sustainability Bond Standards, ICMA’s Green and Social Bond Principles, Sustainability Bond
Guidelines, Sustainability-Linked Bond Principle, as well as the Thai translation of the detailed guidance
of issuing green bonds which were prepared by Asian Development Bank (ADB) in collaboration with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and ThaiBMA.
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| Service Excellence

3.3 PDPA & regulations

Guideline and practice:

ThaiBMA oversees and monitors the conduct of its members in order to ensure fairness and efficiency

in debt securities trading industry. It serves as a self-regulatory organization (SRO) by issuing rules and

guidelines on debt securities trading and good market practice. The rules and guidelines which were
published on the ThaiBMA's website in 2021 are as follows:

e Establish frequently asked question (FAQ) to assist dealer members and bond market participants
in understanding how to perform and comply with ThaiBMA's regulation. The FAQ covers the code
of conduct and reporting of debt instrument trading.

o The Guideline for using bonds as collateral in securities margin loans and its enforcement procedures
was published in collaboration with the Association of Securities Companies (ASCO).

Privacy policy and procedure:

ThaiBMA published a privacy policy on ThaiBMA's privacy center website and implemented procedures
to handle personal data breach in order to ensure compliance with the Personal Data Protection Act
B.E. 2562 (PDPA) and to strengthen stakeholders’ confidence in the protection of personal information,
and the safekeeping of confidential information.

Furthermore, to ensure that all stakeholders would be well-informed about the processing of personal
data, ThaiBMA provided the stakeholders with the privacy notice setting out the information regarding
the personal data collected, purposes for processing personal data, as well as other PDPA's required
information, prior to the collection of their personal data.

Privacy Center

PRIVACY CENTER

NMISAUASDVUDYAddUUAAA

wnasmsudodovamsusinanadogaduynna misi3a3nSvavtdhwoodoyaduynna
{Privacy Notice)

suwhealBaniiche  voxSwoslagadougmamuonge
swadbooiiuiuSmsiomseansusussusdoyady wmslurssodoyadunmna
ynnafidudunslosanmoaacsiasniling sa:anduo) p o hshort tyabbeg abed o)
srwosdogaduunng IEYE
itk O

ThaiBMA Annual Report 2021 @



| Service Exceller

3.4 Association activities

Throughout the year 2021, ThaiBMA organized activities that brought bond market stakeholders together,
giving opportunities for networking among all participants. Key activities organized in 2021 include:

Press conference: ThaiBMA organized press conferences on a quarterly basis to communicate and
distribute Thai bond market information to the press and media.

 ThoiBMA
n]s“na\"‘h}]asuh}): munmti'naﬂjn1nﬁa1m1awwdlm
aaraasiaiskilnsasousn : tasinafl 3 sl 2564
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Cooperation between FETCO and ThaiBMA: ThaiBMA, in cooperation with FETCO, published

Interest Rate Expectation Index based on survey from fund managers and bond dealers about their
views on interest rates and government bond yields.

&) FETCO .:::::.
o 3%
@) ThaiBMA 3 i

Best Bond Awards 2020: Best Bond Awards was first organized in 2002 to promote professional

standards and reward excellent conducts in the Thai bond market. This event has become one of the
most influential awards for bond market professionals. In 2021, the award ceremony was held on April 1,
2021, at Waldorf Astoria hotel.
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| Service Excellence

CSR activities: To alleviate the impact of Covid-19, ThaiBMA donated 2.52 million baht to Thammasat

University field hospital to fund the procurement of high flow oxygen device for critical Covid-19 patients.
A total of 2,000 Antigen Test Kits (ATK), with a total value of 480,000 baht, were also given to Khlong
Toei Community and the Southern Border Peace Group (Luk Rieng).
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Scholarships: ThaiBMA granted scholarships to students in 8 provincial universities that had signed

MoU with ThaBMA, i.e., Khon Kaen University, Prince of Songkla University, Ubon Ratchathani University,
Chiang Mai University, Burapha University, Kasetsart University Chalermphrakiat Sakon Nakhon province

campus, Maejo University and Naresuan University.
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| Service Ex

Market Dialogues and Knowledge Sharing:
ThaiBMA serves as an industry association to promote fair and efficient bond market. We represented

dealer members and bond market stakeholders and organized aforum for policy discussions concerning
market development as follows:

1. Bond knowledge booth: On February 2, 2021, Together with SET and SEC, ThaiBMA set up a booth to
disseminate knowledge and enhance public understanding about the Thaibond market at the 23" Senate
Meeting (Second Annual General Session) at the Parliament Building, Samsen Road.

2. The amendment to the civil and Commercial Code on the interest rate and default interest rate: on
February 23, 2021, ThaiBMA organized the meeting with the Bank of Thailand (BOT) to discuss on the
amendment that will have an effect on the corporate bond market. According to the amendment, the
interest rate on monetary debt, which is not specified by an agreement or a provision of law, shall be
reduced from 7.5% per annum to 3% per annum and the default interest rate shall be reduced from
7.5% perannumto 3% plus the add-on rate at 2% per annum. Consequently, in the corporate bond market,
if the default interest rate is not specified in the bond's terms and conditions, the determined rate will be
applied pursuant to the amendment.

3. Focus group with Asian Development Bank (ADB): The focus group was held onMay 10,2021, todiscuss
about the use of local currency collateral for cross-border financial transactions.

4. Registration of debt instruments issued abroad: on July 19, 2021, ThaiBMA organized the meeting
with Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited (BBL), Kasikornbank Public Company Limited (KBANK),
and Allen & QOvery (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (A&O) to discuss the possibility of registering debt instruments
that were issued aboard.

5. ESG meeting with International Capital Market Association (ICMA): On October 12, 2021, ThaiBMA
organized a meeting with ICMA to discuss about ESG development in Thai bond market.

ThaiBMA Annual Report 2021 @



| Service Excel

3.5 Professional trainings courses

ThaiBMA organized a series of professional training courses to strengthen competency and professionalism
of personnel involved in the bond market. Duetotheprolonged COVID-19 pandemic, ThaiBMA continued
to organize regular professional courses via remote classroom as usual.

Bond Market Analysis | ms"-.m 2) 11 October 2021
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| Building Resilience

4.1 Post default

Research paper on post-default measures:

ThaiBMA has conducted research on the issues relating to major problems and obstacles concerning
the roles of bondholder's representative in post-default scenario, such as monitoring the issuer's financial
performance, monitoring cross default, and the role of the bondholders’ representative after the issuer
entering the rehabilitation proceeding.

The research paper titled “the missing pieces in the corporate bond ecosystem (legal approach)” was
issued and presented to the ThaiBMA's board of directors for discussion and gathering feedback. This
research paper aims to identify issues and concerns to foster further research and development of
guidelines to strengthen the post-default roles of bondholders’ representative and enhance investor
protection.

Guideline on event sign bond:

ThaiBMA has issued a guideline on event sign bond, which is available on the ThaiBMA's website. This
guideline aims to provide investors with the information on any significant events pertaining to the bond
to enable investors to make informed investment decisions. The examples of event sign published on
the website are bond restructuring (RS), Investor Caution (IC), Request information (RI) and so on.
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| Building Resilien

4.2 Bond market ecosystem

Research papers: ThaiBMA conducted research on the Thai bond market ecosystem in order to

promote the Thai bond market's sustainable development and resilience for the benefits of all stakeholders.
The key topics covered in 2021 are as follows:

1. Collateral considerations in corporate secured bonds

The impact of amending the regulation on issuing and offering Thai perpetual bonds
Guidelines on Thai corporate bond market development

Current trends in retail investor concentration in Thai corporate bonds

Changing landscape in Thai bond market during COVID-19 pandemic

Digital trends in Thai bonds offering

Greenshoe option in Thai bond market

Real estate backed tokens and REIT buyback, the possible effects on the Thai bond market
Debt to GDP and trends in Thailand

© O N ook N

4.3 Bond literacy

ThaiBMA recognized the importance of promoting professional competency, financial literacy and
developing human capital in the bond market. Various trainings, seminars and academic activities were
held for both professional and non-professional investors. Due to the prolonged Covid-19 pandemic,
several seminars related to bond market investment for retail investors and stakeholders were held by
virtual classroom.

& ThaBMA

Public seminars: I duuwnooulad
“Sustainability-Linked Bonds™ On 26 January 2027, [k eati i e

ThaiBMA organized first online seminar on the e S— ]
Sustainability-Linked Bonds (SLBs) to promote
14.40 -15.20 2

sustainable finance through SLBs issuance in Thai
bond market and invited keynote speakers from the "
International Capital Market Association (ICMA), S U0t ot Bahementutie Yo AMAE s, A
Sustainalytics, Enel Group, and the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) to share their experiences
and insights.

The seminar covered topics such as Sustainability-
Linked Bonds Principles (SLBP) as international
reference standards, how it is different from green
and social bonds, the importance of Sustainability
Performance Target (SPT), as well as the principles
for issuing and offering of SLBs in Thailand.

Ovarview of Sustainabiiity-Linked Bonds
and how businesses can take advantage of them

15.20 - 15.40
Pioneer case of SLB successful issuer:
Expacience and bonafits from Issuing SLB

foecuie Datls Veoova
twsd of Cporuie e n Lral fps

15.40 -16.00
Extornal Reviews :
Overview of the purpose and types of review.

Mecheiss Gandat
Asscc Dires b Juatanatde Toww s Sonsar Sustematgtie s

16.00 -16.20

Rule and Regulation on issuing SLB
In Thaiiand (S8
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“Which assets will perform in the second half
2021: Bond, Stocks, Gold or Crypto?”.

ThaiBMA, in collaboration with Federation of Thai
Capital Market Organization (FETCO), organized a
seminar on Facebook Live and YouTube Channel
on June 25" 2021.
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“Bond outlook and update in COVID-19 era”: ThaiBMA,
in collaboration with Thai investors Association
(TIA), organized a virtual seminar on July 30th,
2021, aiming to educate personnel on investment
knowledge in the Thai bond market.
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Bond Basic Course: ThaiBMA organized “Bond Basic” and “Bond Basic All about Corporate Bond” courses
every month on Facebook live to provide fundamental knowledge of fixed-income securities market in
Thailand for investors and anyone interested in enhancing knowledge in bond markets.
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Bond Academy: ThaBMA organized “Bond Academy, an online training program focusing on bond market
for university students with the objective to enhance their practical knowledge in the bond market and
expand their career opportunities through virtual classroom, panel discussion from professional experts
and workshop activities. Over 1,000 students from various universities across the country have attended
the program.

e

Season 8 Bond Academy

BOND ACADEMY W Online 2021 %

ONI! INE 2021

#Season8

« 16 - 17 gawvu 64 (1330 - 1630 u)
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Promoting bond literacy through press and media: ThaiBMA continued to promote bond market literacy
through press and media both online and offline.During 2021, 25 articles, more than 40 infographics
and Bond basic e-Learning clips were disseminated on website and social media. Nowadays, there are
more than 46,000++ followers on Facebook

SUSTAINABILITY-LINKED BOND
suusnuavIingUIUaI p

Auidaatonowdalu (Sustainability-Linked Bond « SLE)
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Highlights of ThaiBMA's Activities in 2021

Sustainability-linked bonds seminar: ThaiBMA in Knowledge sharing: Together with SET and SEC,
cooperation with ICMA, Sustainalytics, Enel group, ThaiBMA set up a booth to disseminate knowledge
SEC held online seminar on January 26, 2021 and enhance public understanding about the Thai
bond market at the 23rd Senate Meeting at the
Parliament Building, Samsen Road on February 22,

2021
£ BOND ACADEMY 9 ()91 &
{  ONLINE |

Press Conferences: ThaiBMA organized press Bond Academy: ThaBMA organized “Bond Academy,
conferences on quarterly basis to communicate an online training program, for students from various
and distribute Thai bond market information to universities across the country.

press and media via MS Team program.

3 \; -
| =

Best Bond Awards 2020: The Award ceremony was held onApril 1,2021,at Waldorf Astoria hotel, a Luxury
Collection Hotel, Bangkok.

"|l
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Highlights of ThaiBMA's Activities in 2021
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CSR activities: ThaiBMA donated 2.52 million bahtto Thammasat University field hospital to fund the procurement
of high flow oxygen device . Atotal of 2000 Antigen Test Kits (ATK) were also given to Khlong Toei Community

and the Southern Border Peace Group (Luk Rieng).
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Online training: ThaiBMA organized online training
for Faculty of Business Administration King Mongkut's
Institute of Technology Ladkrabang on the topic of
Fundamentals of Debt Instruments on Sep 23,
2021.

Dol Hoemdaigrn Uodlais 20)2]
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Bond Regulatory Update: ThaiBMA organized online
Bond Regulatory Update on November 23, 2021.

28

Bond Trader Refresher
~ - -
Course 2021 aason 3

AosnuasIes aleodonas
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Bond Trader Refresher Course: ThaiBMA organized
online Bond Trader Refresher Course 3 times in
2021.

Calloble Bond
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Bond Basic All about Corporate Bond: ThaiBMA
organized online Bond Basic All about Corporate
Bond every month in 2021.
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Bond Market Highligh
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Another year of 1 trillion corporate bond issuance

Long-Term corporate bond issuance in 2021 exceeded THB 1 trillion for second year since 2019. The
issuance value increased 50% from the prior year.
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First issue of Sustainability-Linked Bond.

Thai Union PCL. issued the first Sustainability-Linked Bond (SLB) in Thailand with the issue size of THB
5,000 million. The bond has step-up/ step-down coupon related to the achievement of Sustainability
Performance Targets (SPTs).

SUSTAINABILITY-LINKED BOND
suusnyavinguiuad @

HufduaSuanudodu (Sustainability-Linked Bond : SLB)
osynshidbersuuuutnd Asosroomdsaunsaiuiunioacactd |
mukadusvaudBsaftanubaulvoiuduadouna:donuy

’ SLB Sunsnuaving santaousun tnegdeu ndu Sifa (mnuu)
: Thai 10a3uf 20 na. 2564 yasihmsaan 5,000 Huun 2wy 70

W Union aswanide 247% dal ausmeuridnavnuamiu
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v I SLB sunsnuaolanoonide na. 2018 1ob Enel Group USUNK3N
I wiHwnRusEAdathuaiawdonunounuifidothodon 55%
-
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ESG bond issuance surged

ESG bond issuance in 2021 dramatically rose by 100% from the previous year. The major portion came
from sustainability bond issued by the Ministry of Finance (MOF) to finance the MRT Mass transit orange
line and alleviate the effect of COVID-19.

B Green bond | Social bond Sustainability bond . SLB

min.baht
200,000
+100% 173,800
150,000 i
100,000 86,400 120100
s 29,040 onem
8,200 €269
= Em B .
0 . 8000
2018 2019 2020 As of 17Dec2021
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FRB indexed to new reference rate “THOR”

Floating rate note/ bonds indexed to new types of reference rate, Thai Overnight Repurchase Rate
(THOR), was continued to be issued by both the Bank of Thailand and corporate sector with total value
over THB 300 billion. THOR will replace Thai Baht Interest Rate Fixing (THBFIX) as THBFIX will be

phased out in 2023.

Since Mar 29, 2021: BOT issued 16 floating notes, total valued
THB 470,448 million

@ Sep 28, 2020: KBANK issued 3-month floating rate note valued
THB1 000 millon, offered to I, THOR + 04075%

0 Sep 30, 2020: SCB issued 2 3-month floating rate notes valued
THB500 million, offered to HNW, 1.4% - THOR 3M

e Mar 12, 2021: KKP issued 1-year floating rate bond valued THB 1,000
million, offered to I, THOR + 0.15%

“ UOB et JU123,2021: UOB issued 1-year and 1-month floating rate bond
valued THB 1,000 million, offered to i, THOR + 0.1%

‘ pu Aug 6,2021: PTT issued 1-year and 6-month floating rate bond

\.:,“ valued THB 4,000 million, offered to IHNW , THOR + 0.18%

NR holding hit record high

Non-resident investors holding in Thai bonds made a new record high, reaching 1.03 trillion baht on Dec
21,2021. The last high was on July 2, 2019, at 1.005 trillion baht.

STAY ol7 o571 21 Dec 21: 1,029,605

2 Jul 19: 1,005,833

ann
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| 2027 THAI BOND MARKET REVIEW

= Long-Term corporate bond issuance in 2021 exceeded THB 1 trillion for second
year since 2019. The issuance value increased 50% from the prior year.

= The first sustainability - linked bond (SLB) was issued by Thai Union PCL with
the issue size of THB 5,000 million.

— ESG bond issuance in Thailand surged by 100% in 2021.

- Floating rate note/ bonds indexed to new reference rate - Thai Overnight
Repurchase Rate (THOR) with total value of over THB 300 billion were issued
in 2021.

— Bond yield rose from signs of economic recovery and increased supply of
government bond. 10-year bond yield at the end of year was 1.89%, 61 bps
higher than the prior year.

— The first corporate bond using blockchain technology was offered to retail
investors. PTT Exploration and Production (PTTEP) became the first corporate
bond issuer of so-called digital bond offered to retail investors via the
government’s digital wallet “Pao Tang” empowered by Krungthai Bank (KTB).

= New high of non-residents holding in Thai bonds at 1.03 trillion was recorded
on December 21,2021.

Outstanding value — Total outstanding value of Thai bond
market grew 6.4% from 2021.

Inthe second year of pandemic, total outstanding value of Thai bond market at the end of 2021 continued
to increase by 6.6% to THB 15.07 trillion. The large portion came from government bond which
accounted for 45% of total outstanding value. Corporate bond and Bank of Thailand (BOT) bond ranked
second and third which accounted for 28% and 19% respectively. The remaining of the outstanding value
were State Owned Enterprise (SOE) bond (7%) and foreign bond (1%). (See Figure 1)
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& Government Bond © Bank of Thailand Bond # Corporate Bond # State Owned Enterprise Bond @ Foreign Bond
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Figure 1: Outstanding Value of Thai Bond Market

Classified by types of bonds, government bond and treasury bill grew 13.67% and 23.02% respectively.
They contributed THB 762 billion to overall increase of THB 937 billion. Meanwhile, the outstanding value
of BOT bond declined 13.90% and foreign bond fell 13.82%. Outstanding value of long-term corporate
bond and commercial paper increased from increase in issuance in 2021. (See Figure 2)

Type 2020
‘Government Bond 5,581,029
Treasury Bill 438,958
State Owned Enterprise Bond 926,622
‘Bank of Thailand Bond 3,365,405
Long-Term Corporate Bond 3,569,330
‘Commercial Paper 169,863
Foreign Bond (Baht Bond) 81,807

Total 14,133,014

2021 Growth(%
6,344,024 #p 13.67%
540,000 #p 23.02%
1,016,305 #p 9.68%
2,897,665 ¥ -13.90%
3,937,065 Ay 10.30%
264,639 #h 55.80%
70,504 ¥ -13.82%
15,070,202 #h 6.63%,

Figure 2: Outstanding Value Classified by Types of Bonds

Classified by sector, the outstanding value of top 6 sectors of long-term corporate bond contributed to
68.66% of the total. The 6 sectors were energy, property, bank, finance (non-bank), food and commerce

sectors. (See Figure 3)
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Figure 3: Long-Term Corporate Bond Outstanding Value Classified by Sector

Trading value — Average trading per day down by 20%

Daily average trading value in 2021 was at THB 66 billion, down 20% from the previous year at THB 83
billion due to declining trading activity in BOT bond. However, BOT bond was still the most traded bond
for the year with average THB 37 billion traded daily. The second most traded was government bond
with average trading at THB 24 billion. Both BOT andgovernment bond accounted for 92% of daily trading
activity. The other 8% was from corporate, state-owned enterprise and foreign bond, which accounted
for THB 4.6 and 6 million respectively. (See Figure 4)

# Government Bond * Bank of Thailand Bond = Corporate Bond # State Owned Enterprise Bond @ Foreign Bond
100

92 90
o B 57 BN L
80 _°' w77 8 79 —_—
69 72 — ' 66
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3 60 67 62
g 63 51 52 55 62 55 -~
40 57 65

: R
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Figure 4: Average Daily Trading Value in Thai Bond Market
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The average daily trading value of corporate bond was 4.6 billion, in line with the average of
around THB 4.5 billion for the last 4 years. The main reason was due to buy-and-hold nature of
individual investors which are the main holder of corporate bonds. (See Figure 5)
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Figure 5: Average Da/Iy Trad/ng Value of Corporate Bond

Bond issuance — Long-term corporate bond issuance
increased 50% from last year, breaking THB 1 trillion mile-
stone for second year.

After a slow issuance last year, long-term corporate bond issuance rose sharply by 50% in 2021.The
large increase was attributed to 6 business sectors namely energy, property, finance (non-bank), commerce,
ICT and food. Each sector contributed over THB 100 billion to overall issuance.

Government bond issuance rose substantially by nearly 50% due to the government's financing needs
to fund COVID-19 relief measures. On the contrary, BOT bond issuance declined by 38% to accommodate
the increased government bond issuance. Issuance of 6month BOT bills and 3-year BOT bonds were
discontinued in 2021 while the MOF re-auction 6-month treasury bills and 3-year government bonds on
aregular basis.

Type 2020 2021 Growth(%
‘Government Bond 850,721 1,260,001 #p 48.11%
‘Treasury Bill 558,958 1,060,000 #p 89.64%
State Owned Enterprise Bond 181,390 197,658 # 8.97%
‘Bank of Thailand Bond 7,196,556 4,464,438 ¥ -37.96%
Long-Term Corporate Bond 687,433 1,034,572 #§ 50.50%
‘Commercial Paper 607,662 698,943 #p 15.02%
Foreign Bond (Baht Bond) 1,600 5,627 #p 251.69%

Total 10,084,320 8,721,239 W -13.52%,

Figure 6: Bond Issuance
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Long-term corporate bond issuance

The value of long-term corporate bond issuance was at THB 1,034,572 million, up 50% from the prior
year and exceeding 1 trillion for second year since 2019. Categorized by credit rating, both investment
grade and high yield bond issuance increased 49% and 65% respectively. 67.73% of high yield bond issuance
in 2021 were secured bonds.

Rating Growp ® High pwld @ lovestment Geade
1,084,670

1,034,572
i
902,076
821,204
R0 200
687,433
o0 e
0 e
T 207 2018 2019 2020 2021

Figure 7: Long-Term Bond Issuance

Foreign bond issuance

This year, there was only 1 issuer from Lao PDR which was EDL-Generation Public Company. The total
issuance was at THB 5,626 million. (See Figure 8)

B Lao PDR = Myanmar

25,000 23,661
20,001
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,626

5,000

1,600

-

2017 2018 2019 2021

Figure 8: Foreign Bond Issuance
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FX bond issuance

Total FX bond issuance in 2021 was at THB 46,153 million. Most of the bonds were EUR denominated
bond issued by Kiatnakin Phatra Bank (KKP) and Kasikornbank (KBANK). (See Figure 9)

currency ®EUR ®USD

20,000 47,247 46,153
40,000
30,000
20,000 17,345 16,278
10,000
4,942
N

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Figure 9: FX Bond Issuance

ESG bond issuance — ESG issuance hit another record
high as both public and private sectors issued more ESG

Total issuance of ESG bond was at THB 173 billion in 2021, which increased 100% from the prior year,
making accumulated outstanding value amounting to THB 297 billon. More than half of ESG bond issuance
came from MOF's sustainability bond worth THB 107 billion. The proceeds from the bond were used for
funding mass transportation projects and COVID-19 relief package. Another issuer from public sector
was National Housing Authority of Thailand (NHA). NHA issued social and sustainability bonds to finance
new and existing affordable and green housing projects. The projects aimto create sustainable and better
living for Thai people.

For private sector, there were variety of ESG bonds issued in 2021. KBANK was a new issuer in sustaina-
bility bond. The bank issued EUR 155 million to finance or refinance eligible green or social projects.
Another corporate issuer, Thai Food Group, was the first corporate to issue social bond. The proceeds
from the bond were used to buy raw materials from farmers, whose businesses were affected by COVID-19,
and hire local workers. For green bonds, there were 5 issuers in 2027 and most of them were issued to
finance renewable energy projects.
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2021 marked the first year that the sustainability-linked bonds (SLBs) were issued in Thailand. As opposed
to other ESG bonds, the proceeds from the SLBs can be used in normal business operation to promote
more sustainable business activity rather than being tied to finance specific sustainable projects. There
were 2 issuers of SLBs, and both were from private sector namely Thai Union (TU) and Indorama Ventures
(IVL). TU was the first SLB issuer that introduced step-up and/ or step-down coupon rates related to the
achievement of Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs). These targets include remaining in the Dow
Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) Emerging Markets and ranking in the top 10 companies for the DJSI
Food Products Industry Index; reducing carbon emissions from manufacturing operation by 4% annually;
and increasing the monitoring and surveillance of Thai Union’s wild-caught tuna supply chains. SLB issued
by IVL is tied to IVL's three performances: reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 10% by 2025 (from a
2020 base), increasing recycling of PET bale input to 750,000 ton per year by 2025 and achieving 25%
renewable electricity consumption in 2030.(See Figure 10)

Theme Entity Issue Size |

GOV
Sustainability THB 107,000 mln.

Sustainability THB 2,100 miln.
Social THB 3,000 mln.

Sustainability THB 6,000 miln.

Sustainability THB 5,000 miln.
Social THB 1,000 min.
Green THB 2,000 min.
Green THB 3,000 mln.
Green THB 12,000 min.
Green THB 1,500 mln.
Green THB 10,200 mln.

Total THB 173,800 mln..

Figure 10: ESG Bond Issuers in 2021
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| Composition of Bond Holders in 2021

cooP
C.4d%

Retail Investors 5.46%

Holders of government bond

The top holder of government bond was long-term
contractual funds at 26.83% of total government
bond outstanding. Insurances ranked second with
23.38%. Foreign Investors remain one of the significant
government bond holders at 13.39%.

(See Figure 11)

Figure 11: Holders of Government Bond

coor
Gowt Entities 2.76% 0.39% |

Holders of Bank of Thailand
(BOT) bond

The largest holder of BOT bond was banks, accounting
for 51.36% of BOT bond outstanding. The second
and third largest holders were mutual funds and
long-term contractual funds which accounted for
23.74% and 15.76% respectively. (See Figure 12)

Figure 12: Holders of Bank of Thailand (BOT)
Bond

Companies 3.56%

Holders of corporate bond

The main holder of corporate bond was individual
Investors, accounting for 34.66%. Insurances
and long-term contractual funds ranked second
and third with 19.14% and 13.34% respectively.
(See Figure 13)

Mutual Fund 10.56% —

Figure 13: Holders of Corporate Bond
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NR flows - large inflow in 2021 made an all-time high NR
holding value at THB 1.03 trillion

Total NR flows for the year 2021 was net inflow at THB 144 billion, while previous year was net outflow
at THB 64,025 million. The inflow entered in the second quarter of the year when there was high inflation
expectation in the US from high economic activity. The market expected that the Federal Reserve (Fed)
may raise interest rate faster than expected which would slow down the economic growth. Therefore,
investors were buying more risk-free asset to offset the risk. In the first half of the year, total net inflow
was at THB 73 billion.

In the second half of the year, there was inflows due to speculation that THB had depreciated excessively
from business inactivity and high case of COVID-19. After the cases went down, foreign flows came in
both bond market and stock market speculating appreciation of THB. In November 2021, Thai government
announced reopening of business and welcomed more foreign tourists. Therefore, there was an
expectation that Thai economy would rebound as people went back to work. In the second half of the
year, total net inflow in Thai bond market was at THB 71 billion.

The total net inflow for the year 2021 was at THB 144 billion, of which THB 141 billion were inflow for
long-term bond. For short-term, there was net buy outright trading at THB 70 billion and expired bond
at THB 67 billion, resulting in THB 3 billion of inflow.

ol et 21 Dec 21: 1,029,605
2 Jul 19: 1,005,833

"139,618

Million (Baht)

NR investor holding

NR investor holding of Thai bond increased from THB 857 billion in 2020 to THB 1.02 trillion at the end
of 2021. NR holding reached THB 1 trillion in November 2021 and peaked on 21 December at THB 1.03
trillion which was a record high. The last time that NR holding exceeded 1 trillion was in July 2019. Average
Time to Maturity (ATM) declined slightly from 9.55 at the end of 2020 to 8.8 at the end of 2021.
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Yield movements

At the start of 2021, COVID-19 remained the dominant risk factor for economy around the world. As
the year progressed and vaccines were rolled out, the economy began to recover from the slowdown.
Risk appetite grew as investor invested more in risky assets and sold safe assets such as bonds which
push yield higher.

During the first half of the year, the surge in US inflation due to business reopening had caused global
bond yields including Thailand to rise markedly. There was market expectation that the Fed may have
to raise interest rate faster than expected thus slowing down the economic growth.

However, Delta variant emerged during the second and third quarter of the year had deteriorated the
sentiment of economy full recovery. Investors were in risk-off mode again and bond yield was getting
lower.

In the last quarter of the year, Thai economy began to show signs of recovery with the easing of
government measures and re-opening of borders. Global inflation, particularly in the US, rose significantly
due to higher energy prices, supply bottleneck, labor shortage and increasing demands for goods and
services. As inflation concern grew, the Fed'’s tapering of bond purchase was expected to be earlier
and faster than previously anticipated, leading to rising US long-term bond yields. In tandem with US
bond yields coupled with expected increasing government bond supply, Thai government bond yields
moved higher across the curve.2-year, 5-year and 10-year government bond yields finished the year at
0.65%, 1.28% and 1.89% respectively. Approximately 61-68 bps higher from the start of the year. Short-term
yield rose only slightly because there was no sign of raising policy rate which remained in the lowest
level at 0.5%.
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Credit spread movement

Credit spread of investment grade corporate bonds has been declining as COVID-19 cases subsided
and investor's confidence came back. Besides, ample liquidity and low deposit rate have prompted
investors to search for higher yield investment such as corporate bonds. For the year 2021, credit
spread for bonds in the rating group of AAA and AA, declined 31-36 bps while rating group of A and
BBB (except BBB-) declined 77 -102 bps. Comparing to pre- COVID level, credit spread for rating category
of AAA and AA were below the pre-pandemic level, while A and below were still higher than that
of pre-pandemic level. This indicated that investors were somewhat risk conscious over credit quality
of bonds.

SY Credit Spread (Bps.)

Dec 20

575

Corporate bond yields

Corporate bond vyield, a result of government bond yields plus credit spread, represented a cost of
funding for corporates. In 2021, corporate bond yield for 5-year bonds in the rating group of AAA and
AA increased by 33—38 bps to stay at 1.85% - 2.1% which was the level near the pre-pandemic level in
2019. For corporates in the rating group of A, 5-year corporate bond yield decreased by 12 bps to stay
at 2.52%, higher than the pre-pandemic level of 2.37%. Meanwhile, 5-year corporate bond rated BBB+,
BBB and BBB- increased by 76 bp, 34 bp and 12 bp respectively, higher than pre-pandemic level.
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Summary

Although 2021 has been another year of COVID-19 with new variants, we have seen healthy recovery
of corporate bond issuance from the prior year, indicating that Thai bond market has become more
resilient. New products were created and introduced to the market such as sustainability - linked
bond (SLB) and THOR floating rate bonds. There was a digital innovation using blockchain technology
in bond issuance for both government and corporate sector. The record high of NR holding has also
demonstrated foreign investors’ confidence in Thai bond market. Despite unforeseeable risks in the
future, itisexpected that the bond market will continue to be one of the important sources of funding
for both the government and corporate sector in Thailand.
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| AUDIT COMMITT

To Member and Stakeholders,

The Audit Committee of the Thai Bond Market
Association (‘the Association”) consisted of 3 members
of the Board of Directors as followed; Dr. Somjin
Sornpaisarn (until 19" May,2021) Miss Watana
Tiranuchit (from 20" May, 2021) as Chairman, Mr.
Apichart Tungkiatsilp (until 19" May, 2021)
Mr.Thitawat Asaves (from 20" May, 2021) Mr.
Sukkawat Prasurtying as member. Mr. Santiporn
Wongpanchalert, Internal Auditor, served as the
Committee Secretary.

The Audit Committee was appointed by and accountable
to the Board of Directors. The Committee performed
its duties as set forth in the Audit Committee
Charter.

The Committee met four times in 20271 and the
issues discussed and reviewed in the meetings
can be summarized as followed:

e Reviewed the annual financial statements for
the year 2020 for the submission to the Board
of Directors and the Annual General Meeting
(AGM);

o Selected of the external auditor for the year
2021 and considered the fee for the submission to
the Board of Directors and the Annual General
Meeting (AGM);

e Reviewed and approved in the 2022 internal
audit plan. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the audit results and provided recommendations
for more efficient operations and proper control
system;

e The Audit Committee also followed up on the
progress and results of the risk management
activities and provided recommendations for
effective risk management procedure.

Based on information provided by the management,
the Committee is confident that the Association’s
internal control and risk management are adequate
and proper.

The Committee has exercised independent discretion
and expressed its opinions in the best interest of
the Association.

The Committee also provided necessary advice
and recommendations so that the Association
followed good corporate governance practices.
This will certainly lay a strong foundation for the
Association to achieve stable and sustainable
growth and trust of members and stakeholders, in
line with the spirit of the SRO, as well as the Information
Center of the Thai bond market.

Wk Tivamel

(Miss Watana Tiranuchit)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
March 4, 2022
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| Good Corporat

ThaiBMA realizes the importance of adherence to
the good corporate governance principles. It is fully
confident that good corporate govemance is an essential
factor that promotes the efficiency and effectiveness
of the Association’s operations in achieving its
goals and missions, solid foundation of ThaiBMA
has beenlaid to attain sustainable growth by pursuing
its operation with ethical standards and complying
with relevant laws and regulations. ThaiBMA believes
that good corporate governance will further enhance
the creditability and trustworthiness of the Association
among stakeholders.

Corporate governance policy

Board of Directors of the ThaiBMA has set forth
good corporate governance policy which corresponds
with the vision and mission of the Association. The
policy covers principles of corporate governance
including the Structure and Responsibilities of the
Board of Directors, the Roles and Responsibilities
of the ThaiBMA, Risk Management and Internal
Control, Relationships with Stakeholders, Business
Ethics, and Prevention of Conflicts of Interest.

ThaiBMA has publicly disclosed the corporate
governance principles to its stakeholders. The principle
has also been communicated to all directors, executives
and staffs to ensure understanding and compliance.
Proper overseeing and monitoring activities have
been undertaken to ensure compliance with the
policy. The policy has been reviewed and amended
from time to time in order to keep pace with the
trend of development in this area.

Board of Directors and Committees

1. Board of Directors of the ThaiBMA

According to the ThaiBMA's Articles of Association,
the structure and composition of the Board of Directors
are as follows:

(1) Structure of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall comprise a maximum of
11 members, one of whom is the Managing Director
who is a director by position and the other directors
are elected by the ordinary and extra-ordinary members
of the ThaiBMA. The directors nominated and voted by
the members represent the members and the stakeholders
in the Thai bond market in conformation with the role
of the ThaiBMA as an SRO. At least three of the eleven
members of the Board of directors must be independent
directors who are not executive directors, president,
persons who have authorities in the management,
staff, employees or major stakeholders of the ordinary
and extra-ordinary members: The independent directors
shall hold office for the term of 3 years.

(2) Roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Board of Directors has the responsibilities to establish
policies and strategies of the ThaiBMA in accordance
with the Association’s objectives, Articles of Association,
and the resolution of the General Meeting of Members;
to supervise the President and executives of the Association
to ensure compliance with the Board of Directors’ policy
guidelines; to determine and approve the rules, regulations,
notifications, orders, as well as the Code of Conduct of
the Association; to consider the acceptance or revocation
of membership; to consider the punishment of members
or related persons who violate the rules, regulations,
notifications, orders, as well as the Code of Conduct
of the Association; and to consider the appointments
of committees and advisors of the Association.

(3) Board meetings and meeting quorum

ThaiBMA officially arranges the Board meetings once
a month which are prescheduled throughout the year.
An extra-ordinary meeting may be held occasionally if
it is deemed appropriate. To ensure that proper
consideration betotheissuesinthe agenda, ThaiBMA is
required to send a meeting notices, agenda, and related
documents to each Board member at least 7 days
prior to the meeting in order to allow sufficient time
for each director to study the matters prior to the
meeting. In case of emergency, related documents
may be sentlessthan 7 days in advance of the meeting.
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| Good Corporate Governance

Board of Directors

Meeting
attended

Name Position Term of office

1. Mr. Sommai Phasee ChlmEn Of e BoEElent .0 00 sseae 12/12
Independent Director

Vice Chairperson of the

2. Miss Wattana Tiranuchit (" Board and Independent May 21 - Apr 24 8/8
Director
3. Mrs. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop @ \éfsré:zangirrzi?o?f e May 20 - 30 Dec 21 10/12
4. Miss Narumon Chivangkur © Director May 21 - Apr 24 6/8
5. Mr. Sukkawat Prasurtying Independent Director May 19 - Apr 22 12/12
6.  Mr. Apichart Tungkiatsilp Director May 20 - Apr 23 12/12
7. Mr. Thitawat Asaves Director May 19 - Apr 22 12/12
8. Mr. Rawin Boonyanusasna Director May 19 - Apr 22 10/12
9 Dr. Bhume Bhumiratana Independent Director May 20 - Apr 23 6/12
0. Mr. Tanik Tarawisid © Director May 21 - Apr 24 7/8
11.  Mr. Tada Phutthitada President and Director 17 May 18 - 16 May 22 12/12
12.  Ms. Daranee Saeju @ Advisor to the Board June 21 -May 22 12/12
13.  Ms. Chanunporn Phisitvanich ®  Advisor to the Board June 21 -May 22 12/12
Retired committee
Name Position Term of office Meeting
attended
1. Dr. Somjin Sornpaisarn chdelgggggzzafé?;i%arrd May 18 - Apr 21 4/4
2. Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse Director May 18 - Apr 21 4/4
3. Mr. Pisal Kattiyothaivong Director May 18 - Apr 21 4/4

Remarks:

(1) Miss Wattana Tiranuchit was elected as a new independent director to replace Dr. Somjin Sornpaisan who
completed his term by the Annual General Meeting of Members on 29 April 2027 and Miss Wattana was ap-
pointed as a Vice Chairperson by the Resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting in June 2021.

(2) Mrs. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop resigned from the Board of Directors on 30 December 2021.

(3) Miss Narumon Chivangkur and Mr.Tanik Tarawisid was elected as a new director to replace Mr. Narin
Opamuratawongse and Mr. Pisal Kattiyothaivong who completed his term by the Annual General Meeting of
Members on 29 April 2021.

(4) Ms. Daranee Saeju and Ms. Chanunporn Phisitvanich was re-appointed an advisor by the Resolution of the

Board of Directors Meeting in June 2021. ;
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| Good Corporate Governan

2. The Audit Committee

ThaiBMA strictly adheres to good corporate governance
practices and has accordingly appointed an Audit
Committee to monitor and supervise the operations
of the Management to ensure that the Association
is operated in accordance with rules and code of
ethics under an efficient and effective internal control
system. The Audit Committee shall consist of at
least 2 independent directors and shall be in office
for the same term as director.

(1) Roles, duties and responsibilities

The Audit Committee has the tasks and responsibilities
to review financial statements of the Association to
ascertain thatthe statements are accurate and disclose
sufficient information; to review the Association’s
operation to ensure that there are appropriate internal
control and audit systems; to request information,
comments and explanations from the Association’s
executives, external auditors, and related persons
as well as performing any other tasks as assigned
by The Board of Directors.

Members of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall prepare the Audit Committee’s
report containing opinions about the accuracy,
completeness, and reliability of the annual financial
statements; the adequacy of intemal control system;
the appointment of external auditor, the compliance
with related laws and regulations; as well as the
opinion pertaining to any reports that should be
disclosed to the members under the scope of
responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

(2) Meeting of the Audit Committee

For the Audit Committee’'s meeting, the agenda is
set in advance and related documents are circulated
to members of the Audit Committee and other
participants at least 7 days in advance to allow
sufficient time to study the matters or request. The
Audit Committee’'s meetings are normally held at
least 4 times in each calendar year. The Chairman
of Audit Committee may call a special meeting upon
request of themembers of the committee, the external
auditors, or the Chairman of Board of Directors to
jointly consider essential matters.

Name Position Term of office Meeting attended
1. Miss Wattana Tiranuchit (" Chairperson 20 May 21 - May 22 3/3
2. Mr. Sukkawat Prasurtying Committee 1 June 19 - May 22 4/4
3. Mr. Apichart Tungkiatsilp @ Committee 1 June 19-19 May 22 1/1
4. Mr. Thitawat Asaves Committee 20 May 21 - May 22 3/3
Retired committee
Name Position Term of office Meeting attended
1. Dr. Somjin Sornpaisarn Chairman 1 June 19-29 April 21 11

Remarks: By the Resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting on 20 May 2021:

(1) Miss Wattana Tiranuchit was appointed as a new Chairperson to replace Dr.Somjin Sornpaisan who completed his

term.

(2) Mr. Thitawat Asaves was appointed as a new committee to replace Mr. Apichart Tungkiatsilp.
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| Subcommittees

Pursuant to the Article Association, Board of Directors is required to appoint five subcommittees; i.e. Market
Practice Subcommittee, Market Regulation Subcommittees, Market Information Subcommittee, Disciplinary
Subcommittee and Appeal Subcommittee. The composition and scope of each subcommittee will be provided

in the following sections. In addition to such five subcommittees, the Board of Directors has also appointed
Nomination and Remuneration Subcommittee, Investment Subcommittee and Deposit Sub-committee.

The Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee

Scope and responsibilities: To consider and provide recommendations on the compensation policy and
the remuneration for the Board of Directors, the Managing Director and the Senior Executive Vice President.
This includes advices on human resources management policy of the Association.

Members of Nomination and Remuneration Subcommittee

Name Position Term of office Meeting attended
1. Mrs, Pattera Dilokrungthirapop M Chairperson 1 June 19-30 Dec 21 1/1
2. Mr. Apichat Tungkiatsilp Committee 1 June 19 - May 22 11
3. Mr.Tanik Tarawisid @ Committee 20 May 21 -May 22 1/1

Retired committee

Name Position Term of office Meeting attended

1. Mr. Pisal Kattiyothaivong Committee T June 19-29 April 21 -

Remarks: By the Resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting on 20 May 2021:
(1) Mrs. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop resigned from the Board of Directors on 30 December 2021.

(2) Mr. Tanik Tarawisid was appointed as a new committee to replace Mr. Pisal Kattiyothaivong who completed his term.
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Investment Subcommittee

Scope and responsibilities: To determine a policy, to provide recommendation on guideline of investment
management for the Association, to evaluate the performance of private fund manager for the Association,
and to consider the modification of rules and regulations relating to investment of the Association. Investment

Subcommittee was dissolved by the board meeting in May 2021.

Members of Investment Subcommittee

Name Position Term of office Meeting attended
1. Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse Chairperson 1 June 19-20 May 21 1/2
2. Mr. Thitawat Asaves Committee 1 June 19-20 May 21 2/2
3. Mr. Rawin Boonyanusasna Committee 1 June 19-20 May 21 2/2
4. Mr. Tada Phutthitada Committee 1 June 19-20 May 21 2/2

The Deposit Review Subcommittee

The deposit review subcommittee was appointed by the Resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting on 20
May 2021

Scope and responsibilities: To consideronselect financial institutions in order to deposit ThaiBMA's excess
liquidity, to consider a deposit framework to reduce the risk of concentration of deposits, and to recommend
guidelines for managing ThaiBMA's excess liquidity.

Members of Deposit Review Subcommittee

Name Position Term of office Meeting attended
1. Mrs. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop Chairperson 20 May 21 -30 Dec 21 2/2
2. Mr. Sukkawat Prasurtying Committee 20 May 21 - May 24 2/2
3. Mr. Apichat Tungkiatsilp Committee 20 May 21 - May 24 2/2
4. Mr.Tada Phutthitada Committee 20 May 21 - May 24 2/2
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Selection and Remunerations of the

Committee and Subcommittees

The selection and screening of members of the
Board of Directors and top management as well as
the selection and appointment of members of the
Subcommittees and the President of the ThaiBMA
shall be in accordance with the resolution of the
Board of Directors. In addition, the Board of Directors
has the tasks to review the remuneration structure of
top management as well as to consider and provide
recommendations or opinions pertaining to the policy
regarding remunerations and other benefits of the
Association. The remunerations for members of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and
Subcommittees are as follows:

(1) Remunerations for Board of Directors

The remuneration of the Board of Directors is in
accordance with the resolutions of the Annual General
Meeting of the members. The monthly remuneration
for the Chairperson of the Board and each member of
the Board are set at Baht 50,000 and Baht 10,000
respectively. In addition, both the Chairperson of the
Board and each member of the Board are entitled to
Baht 10,000 per each attendance.

(2) Remunerations for the Audit Committee

According to the resolution of the Board of Directors,
the Audit Committee shall be remunerated for attendance
at each meeting. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee
is entitled to Baht 12,000 per attendance and each
member of the Audit Committee is entitled to Baht
8,000 per attendance.

(8) Remunerations forthe Nomination and Remunerations
Subcommittee and the Investment Subcommittee

According to the resolution of the Board of Directors,
the Chairperson ofthe Nomination and Subcommittee
is entitled to Baht 12,000 and Baht 8,000 respectively
per each attendance.

(4) Remunerations for other Subcommittees

Other subcommittees of the Association are Market
Practice Subcommittee, Market Regulation Subcommittee,
Market Information Subcommittee, Disciplinary
Subcommittee, and Appeal Subcommittee. The Board
of Directors has resolved to pay the remunerations to
each member of each Subcommittee in the form of
meeting fee. The Chairperson of each Subcommittee
is entitled to a fee of Baht 4,000 per meeting whereas
each member of each committee is entitled to a fee
of Baht 3,000 per attendance.

Relationship with stakeholders

The Board of Directors of the ThaiBMA realizes importance
of relationships with stakeholders and places emphasis on
the rights of all stakeholders based on fair and
equal treatment as follows:

(1) Regulatory bodies and supporting government
agencies

ThaiBMA acts in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations promulgated by the regulators, and is
ready for inspection at every process of its operations.
The Association gives due regard to administration
with integrity, transparency, and efficiency in order
to attain the mandated mission; facilitating the nation’s
economic development, and preventing any possible
conflicts of interest.

(2) Members

Members of ThaiBMA are supervised and equally
treated on a fair basis. Besides, the arbitration process
is arranged to settle any disputes which may arise
as a result of trading activities between members
and their counterparties to ascertain that the disputes
are resolved with fairness.

(8) Bond issuers

The ThaiBMA promotes fund mobilization through
issuance of debt instruments which is deemed as
an alterative for lower cost of financing. Fundraising
via bond issuance will enable issuers to manage
their financial positions more efficiently. In this regards,
ThaiBMA regularly and consistently organizes seminars
and trainings for prospective issuers to enhance
their understanding about the method and process
of bond issuance as well as related rules and
regulations

(4) Information users

The ThaiBMA realizes the importance of those who
use data and information for analysis and supporting
investment decision making. Accordingly, the Association
has consistently developed and upgraded the efficiency
in rendering information services in terms of format,
content quality and dissemination channels. ThaiBMA's
website which serves as the main channel for information
dissemination has been well recognized by international
circles and cited as the most comprehensive website
for domestic bond information.

(5) Employees

The ThaiBMA places emphasis on the quality of life
of its employees and is committed to create a favorable
and pleasant working environment in order to maintain
high quality staffs with the organization. Moreover,
the Association provides its employees with strong
supports and opportunities for knowledge and skills
development to ensure theirmaximumwork efficiency.
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(6) The Society

The Association bearsin mindits role and responsibility to
the society, hence contributing to charitable activities. In
particular, it acts as a major organization in disseminating
information and knowledge related to the Thai bond
market.

ThaiBMA also puts emphasison educational activities to
promote knowledge and pays due regard to information
disclosure to ensure that all stakeholders, including
its members, investors, non-member securities companies,
students and academics, as well as the general public
are provided with accurate, sufficient, and timely
information .The efforts of ThaiBMA in this regard are
as follows:

e Providing bond market information via websites
and ThaiBMA Facebook

e Collecting voices of stakeholders via meetings,
market dialogue, and stakeholder visit

e Organizing annual “Best Bond Awards” ceremony
to promote development of the Thai bond markets
on various aspects as well as to enhance quality
and professionalism of institutions involving in
market transactions which is essential for the
consistent and vigorous development of domestic
bond market

Risk management and internal control

The Association recognizes the importance of risk
management and internal control systems, thus
establishing the Association’s risk management policy
and framework which is in accordance with international
enterprise risk management (ERM) principles. The
association has also implemented the risk management
structure within the organization by setting up a Risk
Management Working Group. Operational systems
and intemal management processes of the Association
have been developed toensure that the risk management
process is implemented efficiently and covers all key
risk factors.

With regard to internal control, annual internal audit,
covering all main departments, is under taken and the
internal audit report after such audit is submitted to
the audit committee for consideration. This procedure
helps ascertaining that there are efficient operations
and sufficient internal control systems.

In addition, not only does the Association issue policies
and regulations relating to internal control such as
Chinese wall policy in order to prevent confidential
information leakage and misuse, but it also places
greatemphasis on a security of information technology
system, bond information database, and backup data
as well as a security of computer system to ensure
the efficiency and accuracy of data processing. Information
technology policy and guideline are drafted and implemented
in accordance with the rules and regulation applicable
to the Association.

Works process has been established for employees
and those who work for the Association to verify the
identity of the persons accessing and using the
information.

The Association also establishes Disaster Recovery
Plan and Altemate Site in case of emergency, including
Business Continuity Plan to ascertain that the operation
systems especially in the part of services for the
third party can be continued without interruption.

Business ethics

ThaiBMA is fully confident that the adoption of code
of conduct and business ethics is fundamental factor
for the promotion and upgrading of good corporate
governance. Board of Directors has approved the
Association’s code of conduct which sets out the
operational guidelines for directors, executives and
staffs in carrying out their duties based on good
corporate governance principles.

Printed format of the code of conduct is distributed
to each of the directors, executives and employees.
Every employee is required to
acknowledge the code of conduct
and shall be committed to comply
with the rules prescribed in the
code, where the framework for the
ThaiBMA's standard of practice is
prescribed. The Association also
assigns a responsible person to
continually monitor results of
operations and update the code of conduct from
time to time.

Conflicts of interest prevention

The Association realizes the importance of avoiding
any potential bias or event that would lead to a conflict
of interests. The policy of conflict of interest prevention
is clearly stated in the code of conduct such that the
directors, executives and employees are forbidden
from entering into any transactions that might lead
to conflict of interests with the Association. In case
there is a conflict of interest, due regard should be
paid to the benefit of the Association and the conflict
must be disclosed to the Board of Directors, the
President or the superior of that person (as the case
may be) and immediately reported to the Department
of Regulations and Compliance.

In addition, ThaiBMA has issued a number of notifications
and regulations in an attempt to prevent conflict of
interest; for instance, ThaiBMA's Notification re:
investment in or holding of securities by its executives
and staffs, re: maintaining confidential and internal
information, and ThaiBMA's Regulation on guidelines
for secondment and transfer of employees between
departments, etc.
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| Directory of Me

Ordinary Member/ aanznanaizy
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AIRA Securities Public Company Limited

ANZ Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Kingsford Securities Public Company Limited

Asia Plus Securities Company Limited

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Bank of America National Association

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

Beyond Securities Public Company Limited

BNP Paribas, Bangkok Branch

Bualuang Securities Public Company Limited
Capital Nomura Securities Public Company Limited
CGS-CIMB Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
CIMB Thai Public Company Limited

Citibank, N.A.

Citicorp Securities (Thailand) Limited

Country Group Securities Public Company Limited
DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand) Company Limited
Deutsche Bank AG

Finansa Securities Limited

Finansia Syrus Securities Public Company Limited
Globlex Securities Company Limited

Government Savings Bank

IV Global Securities Public Company Limited
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.

Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited

Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited

KGI Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Kiatnakin Phatra Bank Public Company Limited
Kiatnakin Phatra Securities Public Company Limited

Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited
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| Directory of Members

Ordinary Member/ asnznanaizy

Companies

131N

31.  Krungthai Zmico Securities Company Limited uiEhwanniwg nyalng 41N dnia
32.  Krungsri Securities Public Company Limited uIEmaNNnIWg nael $1ria (m1Tw)
33.  KTB Securities (Thailand) Company Limited vsunnannswg eiid (Wesinalng) $hna
34.  Maybank Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited  uSuhwannsws weuuer (Uszinelng) dne wwon)
35, RHB Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited uSEnwanniwg ansterd WUszinalneg) $na @waw)
36.  SCB Securities Company Limited USEnnannsng nawidisd d1ne
37.  Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited AT Inewadlas $1na (WrnTn)
38.  Standard Chartered Bank (Thai) PublicCompany Limited  swias suanensamsiaesa (Ing) shia @nimmw)
39. [if;ﬁig%ngkong A0 Sinang el By Copeaies pas gesnsuazdosldunifnasiendu sria
40.  TISCO Bank Public Company Limited 3NANT Aald d1na @vnow)
47, TMBThanachart Bank Public Company Limited FUNANT NPT INTUTA 100 (NAITW)
42 Trinity Securities Company Limited USEIwannIng n3aa dnia
43.  UBS Securities (Thailand) Limited uiwhwanniwg gies (Waznelng) $1na
44, United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited  swans gladl $1na (uwnow)
45 UOBKay Hian Securities (Thailand) Public Company vismanning glad wdifou (sznalng) dna
* Limited (T
46.  Yuanta Securities (Thailand) Company Limited uSEnwannIng noaudl (Uszinalne) $1na

Extraordinary Member/ aanznlanainy

Companies UIN

47.  AFS Securities (Thailand) Limited v3unnannswe totewias (Uszindlng) $1na

48.  Elite Securities Company Limited U3ENHANNING 8an $11a

49, ICAP Securities Company Limited v3unmannswe ladiad $1na

50.  Wall Street Tullett Prebon Securities Limited USHNMANNINE 20888031 NALAaNY WIuawd 41na

Associate Member/ annsnaany

Companies UIEN

51.  KPM Securities Company Limited U3EnnannIwg laitan $1na

52.  Land and Houses Securities Public Company Limited — u3unaanning uaua waud 1Ed s1na (Wnam)
53.  Phillip Securities (Thailand) Public Company Limited vsunuannIng Radd (Usznealne) dna @mamw)
54.  Siam Wealth Securities Company Limited U3ENAANNING JENULIAT 31N
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

To The Board of Directors and Members of
The Thai Bond Market Association

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of The Thai Bond Market Association, (Association)
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of income
and expenditure, statement of changes in capital fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Thai Bond Market Association as at December 31, 2021, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting

Standards for Non-Publicly Accountable Entities.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report. | am independent of Association in accordance with the Federation of
Professional Accounting of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards for Non-Publicly Accountable Entities, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Association
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Association or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Association financial

reporting process.
*****/2
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Association’s internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Association’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause Association to cease to continue as a
going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*****!3
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| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.
The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor's

report is Mr. Suwat Maneekanoksakul

(Mr. Suwat Maneekanoksakul)

Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 8134

Dharmniti Auditing Company Limited
Bangkok, Thailand
March 10, 2022
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Baht

2020

15,931,249.74
58,054,458.21
533,560.33
1,280,781.84

75,800,0560.12

914,723,410.07
16,726,075.49
1,613,224.35
2,488,650.72

935,551,360.63

ASSETS
Note 2021
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 76,340,204.11
Current investments 4 950,004,280.81
Account receivable 355,332.29
Other current assets 4,562,413.05
Total Current Assets 1,031,262,230.26

Non-current assets
Long-term investment 5,156 21,861,400.59
Equipment 6 11,560,590.18
Intangible assets 7 924,430.52
Other non-current assets 8 2,482,089.96
Total Non-Current Assets 36,828,511.25
TOTAL ASSETS 1,068,090,741.51

1,011,351,410.75

[

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT.)

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL FUND

Current liabilities
Other payable
Deferred income
Current portion of deferred annual fee
of registered debt securities
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred annual fee of registered debt securities
Provisions for employee benefit
Demolition provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Capital fund
Donated fund
Initial capital fund from members
Accumulated fund
Other components of capital fund
TOTAL CAPITAL FUND
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL FUND

Note

9

11
12

11
13

Baht

2021

2020

3,497,441.23
30,641,018.04

41,284,586.93
7,757,296.18

5,715,572.156
37,379,074.05

37,843,827.84
5,892,143.70

83,180,342.38

86,830,617.74

70,581,805.63
23,999,314.11
3,604,147.71

64,718,405.77
19,288,073.15
3,5633,473.67

98,185,267.45

87,539,952.59

181,365,609.83

174,370,570.33

185,529,785.29
33,130,000.00
671,776,419.26
(3,711,072.87)

185,529,785.29
32,530,000.00
619,025,824.87
(104,769.74)

886,725,131.68

836,980,840.42

1,068,090,741.51

1,011,351,410.75

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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INCOME

THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATICN
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Note

Membership annual fees

Admission fees for registered debt instruments

Annual fees for registered debt instruments

Service fees for data provision

Training fees and book support

Examination fees, training fees and registration

fees for registered traders

Earnings from investment in Unit trust 4

Gain on sales from investment in securities 5

Unrealized gain on securities valuation

Interest income

Other income

Total income

EXPENDITURE

Data system expenses

Staff costs

Business development expenses

Administrative expenses

Depreciation equipment

Amortization of computer software

Finance costs

Total expenditure

Income over (under) expenditure for the year

Baht

2021

2020

7,220,476.44
74,386,211.88
47,179,578.61
52,455,902.71

7,594,872.60
51,613,665.78
48,027,168.63 .
51,438,943.30

1,920,640.00 2,057,060.00
1,856,550.00 728,480.00
60,505.22 335,322.52
10,680,615.46 8,147,409.82
- 7,219,419.90
3,497,756.58 52,227.01
229,823.83 428,609.56
199,488,060.73  177,643,079.12
4,115,931.63 3,465,506.14
113,413,020.31 109,378,415.35
5,850,108.12 7,317,415.87
16,449,491.33 14,148,186 .44
5,491,942.32 7,143,253.00
723,293.83 886,207.84
693,678.80 624,800.81

146,737,466.34

142,963,785.45

52,750,594.39

34,679,293.67

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
Baht
Donaled fund Initial capital fund Accumulated Other components Total
Note from members Fund

Balance as at December 31, 2019
As previously reported 185,529,785.29 32,530,000.00 584,346,531.20 - 802,406,316.49
Initial capital fund from associate member - - - - -
Unrealized gain (loss) 52 - - - (104,769.74) (104,769.74)
Income over (under) expenditure

for the year 2019 . - 34,679,293.67 = 34,679,293.67
Balance as at December 31, 2020 185,629,785,29 32,530,000.00 619,025,824.87 (104,769.74) 836,980,840.42
Initial capital fund from associate member - 600,000.00 - - 600,000.00
Unrealized gain (loss) 5.2 - - - (3,606,303.13) (3,606,303.13)
Income over (under) expenditure

for the year 2020 - - 52,750,594.39 - 52,750,594,39
Balance as at December 31, 2021 185,529,785.29 33,130,000.00 671,776,419.26 (3,711,072.87) 886,725,131.68

[

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities :

Income over(under) expenditure for the year
Adjustment for :
Depreciation equipment
Amortization of computer software
Expenses (income) for employee benefits
Gain (loss) from the estimation of actuarial principle
Earnings from investment in mutual fund
(Gain) loss on sales from investment in securities
Unrealized (gain) loss on securities valuation
Interest income
Finance cost
Net profit from operating assets and liabilities
Account receivable
Current assets
Other non-current assets
Other payable
Deferred income
Deferred annual fees of registered debt securities
Other current liabilities
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Employee benefits paid

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Baht

2021

2020

52,750,594.39

5,491,942.32
723,293.83
1,005,374.06
2,182,862.14
(60,505.22)
(10,680,615.46)

34,679,293.67

7,143,253.00
886,207.84
1,859,747.79
(335,322.52)
(8,147,409.82)
(7,219,419.90)

(3,497,756.58) (52,227.01)
693,678.80 624,800.81
49,508,868.28 29,438,923.86
178,228.04 (491,670.64)
(3,281,631.68) (482,945.01)
6,560.76 22,426.16
(2,218,130.92) (16,168,515.34)
(8,738,056.01) 5,452,574.69
9,304,158.95 (7,156,884.34)
1,865,152.48 259,779.97

48,625,149.90

10,873,689.35
(578,649.61)

48,625,149.90

10,295,039.74

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.



BITHUA

DHARMNITI

THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash flows from investing activities :

Purchases of mutual investments
Purchases of long-term investment
Cash received from the sale of mutual investment
Cash received from the sale of long-term investment
(Increase) decrease in fixed deposits
Cash received from the sale of mutual investment
Cash received from the sale of long-term investment
Purchases of equipment
Purchases of intangible assets
Interest received

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities :

Initial capital fund from member
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, net
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning balance

Cash and cash equivalents, ending balance

Baht

2021

2020

(12,000,000.00)

(950,000,000.00)
70,110,697.46
899,936,321.81
(326,457.01)
(34,500.00)
3,497,742.21

(73,800,000.00)

(10,000,000.00)
49,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

(9,204,621.69)
(20,000.00)
231,272.83

11,183,804.47

(13,793,348.86)

600,000.00

600,000.00

60,408,954.37
15,931,249.74

(3,498,309.12)
19,429,558.86

76,340,204.11

15,931,249.74

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
(A) Legal status and address
The Thai Bond Market Association was established as a juristic entity on September 8,
2005, and granted the license by the SEC, registration number 4/2548, according to Articles
231 and 232 of the Securities and Exchange Commission Act B.E. (2535).
The address of its registered office is its 900 Tomson Tower Building, 10* Floor,

Ploenchit Rd., Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok.

(B)  Nature of the Operation
The Association had received the licensed to operate as an association related to securities
business under Section 230 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 with the main function
of being a member regulator (Self-Regulatory Organization /SRO) and was a center for information
on the bond market including promoting and developing the bond market.
Objectives of the Association are as follows :

(1) To be center of information on the debt securities market and to provide
services related to such information;

(2) To promote and develop debt securities market and businesses;

(3) To promote, develop and prescribe standard of practices for debt securities
businesses;

(4) To supervise Members to ensure compliance with the rules, regulations, ethics,
code of conducts and standard of practices in the debt securities market;

(5) To promote and foster the research and education regarding debt securities
including providing professional views of the related subjects as well as to publicize and
disseminate the information concerning the debt securities market to the public;

(6) To promote the relationship and cooperation among Members;

(7) To provide forum for resolution of dispute arising from debt securities dealing
business between a Member and another Member or a third party;

(8) To carry out any other activities or work for public benefits with on aim to

achieve the Association’s foregoing objectives, which are all non-political related.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

(C) Data of membership
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020 membership of the Association consists of:

Number of members

Type of member 2021 2020
Ordinary Member 46 49
Extraordinary Member 4 4
Associate Member 4 2
Total 54 55

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis for preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
as required by the Accounting Profession Act B.E.2547 in compliance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards for Non-Publicly Accountable Entities. The presentation of the financial statements has
been made in compliance with the Notification of the Department of Business Development, the
Ministry of Commerce, regarding the financial statement's presentation for association, issued
under the Accounting Act B.E.2543.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements
of the Association. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the

financial statements in the Thai language version.

2.2  Recognition of initial capital fund
Revenue from the membership admission fees is recognized in full as initial capital fund

upon membership application.

2.3 Recognition of revenue and expenditure
Revenue from annual membership fees is recognized based on the membership period.

Revenue from initial registration fee of debt securities is recognized in full upon its

registration.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Revenue from annual fees of registered debt securities is recognized based on the
maturity and not exceeding seven years.

Revenue from data provision is recognized based on the service period.

Revenue from providing services is recognized when the services are completely
rendered.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Other revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and deposits at financial institutions with an

original maturity of 3 months or less, excluding cash at banks which are used for guarantee.

2.5 Current investments

The temporary investments in fixed deposits were stated at cost and recognized the
interest at the rate announced by that financial institution in the income statement.

General investments are stated at cost less allowance on decline in value (if any). Loss
on decline in value (if any) such investments is recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Unit trust investments in marketable securites are stated at the fair value.
The Association recognizes the change in the fair value of investment in the statement of

income and expenditure.

2.6 Long-term Investment

Long-term investment in debt securities to be held to maturity is accounted at amortized
cost by the effective rate method.

Investments in equity securities that are available-for-sale investments are stated at fair
value. The association recognized the changes in the fair value of equity instruments in equity
and uses the weighted average method to calculate the cost of investments. Upon the
investment is disposed of, the difference between the net income received and the book value

of investment will be recorded in the statement of income and expenditure.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

2.7  Equipment/Depreciation

Equipment is stated at cost accumulated depreciation and allowance on decline in value
(if any).

Cost is initially recognized upon acquisition of assets along with other direct costs
attributing to acquiring such assets in the condition ready to serve the objectives, including the
costs of asset demolition, removal and restoration of the asset location, which are the
obligations of the company (if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by cost less residual value on the straight-line

basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer and equipment 5 years

Vehicles 5 years

The Association has reviewed the residual value and useful life of the assets regularly.

The depreciation for each asset component is calculated on the separate components
when each component has significant cost compared to the total cost of that asset.

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided in relation to the equipment under installation.

Equipment is written off at disposal. Gains or losses arising from sale or write-off of

assets are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure

2.8 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and allowance on
decline in value (if any). Intangible assets are amortized in the statement of income and
expenditure on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives from the date that they are

available for use. The estimated useful lives are 5 years.

2.9 Deferred income
Deferred income is realized to income by the straight-line method throughout the period

of the agreement.
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2.10

2.1

2.12

14

THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Deferred annual fee of registered debt securities
Deferred annual fee of registered debt securities will be recorded as debt securities fee

income according to the maturity of the debt securities but not exceeding 7 years.

Employee benefits
Short-term employment benefits
The Association recognizes salary, wage, bonus and contributions to social security

fund and provident fund as expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plans)

~ The Association and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Association. The fund’s assets are held in a
separate trust fund and the Association’s contributions are recognized as expenses when

incurred.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans)

The Association has obligations in respect of the severance payments that it must pay
to the employees upon retirement under the labor law and other employee benefit plans. The
Association treats these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined plan is calculated based on the actuarial principles by
a qualified independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Such estimates are
made based on various assumption, including discount rate, future salary increases rate, staff
turnover rate, mortality rate, and inflation rate.

Actuarial gains and losses for post-employment benefits of the employees are

recognized in the statement of income and expenditure.

Income tax

The Thai Bond Market Association has been registered as a securities business related
association with the office of Securities and Exchange Commission to be a juristic person
under Section 233 of the Securities and Exchange Commission Act B.E. 2535 whose legal
status is not interpreted as “juristic company or partnership” as defined under Article 39 of the

Revenue Code. The Association is thus not enforced to pay corporate income tax.
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2.13

2.14

2,15

15

THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Association
has outstanding liabilities arising from legal disputes or obligations as a result of past event
and it is probable that the economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the

amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Using of Accounting Estimation

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in Thailand requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Other components of equity
Other components of the equity are the adjust transaction in the value of long-term
investments in available-for-sale securities in order to be in accordance with the current

market price.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

set by

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of :

Baht
2021 2020
Cash on hand 35,291.00 34,406.00
Cash at banks - Savings accounts 68,814,293.11 14,976,084.15
Cash at banks - Current accounts 7,490,620.00 920,759.59
Total | 76,340,204.11 15,931,249.74

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020 saving accounts bear interest at floating rates which are

banks.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Baht
Balance per book Increase (decrease) during the period Balance per book
as at Addition Deduction Transfer as at
Dec. 31, 2020 in (out) Dec. 31, 2021
Investment (at cost value)
Fixed Deposit Account 4,265.97 950,000,014.84 - - 950,004,280.81
Mutual fund T-CASH 58,050,192.24 12,060,505.22 (70,110,697.46) - -
Total 58,054,458.21 962,060,520.06 (70,110,697.46) - 950,004,280.81
Adjustment of the fair value of
investments = -
Total fair value 58,054,458.21 950,004,280.81
Gain (loss) on sales from investment in securities 60,505.22

During the year 2021, the Association received a letter from the SEC to review the
Association's investment policy in accordance with the interpretation of the provisions of Section 22
of the Trade Association Act B.E. 2509 of the Office of the Decree which interpreted that the
Associations cannot invest in bonds. The Board of Directors of the Association therefore resolved to
allow the Association to sell its investments in debt instruments.

The Association had taken the proceeds from the sale of investments in securities held in
private funds managed by SCB Asset Management Company Limited and One Asset Management
Company Limited in the total amount of Baht 920 million and the excess liquidity from operations in
the amount of Baht 30 million to be deposited into a fixed deposit account with the bank for a period
of not more than 12 months.

The Association classified the temporary investments as investments in fixed depoéits for not
more than 12 months, with interest rates of 0.32% - 0.90% for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021

5. LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

Long-term investment consisted of :

Baht
2021 2020
Investments in securities 21,861,400.59 914,723,410.07
Total 21,861,400.59 914,723,410.07
5.1 Investments in securities
Baht
Balance per book Increase (decrease) during the period Balance per book
as at Addition Deduction Transfer as at
Dec. 31, 2020 in (out) Dec. 31, 2021
Investment (at cost value)
Investment in securities - - - -
Avallable-for-sale securities 322,424,398.91 - (296,851,926.45) - 25,572,473.46
Securities held until maturity 592,403,779.90 - (692,403,779.90) - -
Total 914,828,179.81 - (889,255,706.35) - 25,572,473.46
Adjustment of the fair value of
investments (104,769.74) (3,711,072.87)

Total fair value 914,723,410.07 21,861,400.59

Gain (loss) on sales from investment in securities 10,680,615.46
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THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

DECEMBER 31, 2021

Baht

18

Balance per book

Increase (decrease) during the period

Balance per book

as at Addition Deduction Transfer as at
Dec. 31, 2019 in (out) Dec. 31, 2020
Investment (at cost value)
Investment in securities 840,430,239.11 86,250,530.88 20,000,000.00 (906,680,769.99) -
Available-for-sale securities 3,839,012.83 - 318,585,387.08 322,424,399.91
Securities held until maturity - 4,308,396.99 - 588,085,382.91 592,403,779.90
Total 840,430,239.11 94,397,940.70 20,000,000.00 914,828,179.81
Adjustment of the fair value of
investments 69,031,110.98 (104,769.74)
Total fair value 909,461,350.09 914,723,410.07
Unrealized (gain) loss on
securitiles valuation 36,243,110.58 7.219,419.90
8,147,409.82

Gain (loss) on sales from investment in securities

From July 1, 2020, the Association has changed the method of recognizing unrealized gain (loss)

from long-term investment into income statement and expenses by the new method recorded in another

component of the equity.

During the year 2021, the Assoclation received a letter from the SEC to review the Association's

investment policy in accordance with the interpretation of the provisions of Section 22 of the Trade

Association Act B.E. 2509 of the Office of the Decree which interpreted that the Associations cannot invest

in bonds. The Board of Directors of the Association therefore resolved to allow the Association to sell its

investments in debt instruments.

The Association had sold its investments in securities held in private funds managed by SCB Asset

Management Company Limited and One Asset Management Company Limited. The 3 remaining unsold

bonds were namely TAA216A, BAF302A and MINT313C, which had fair value as at December 31, 2021,

total amount Baht 21.86 million.
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6. EQUIPMENT
Equipment consisted of :
Baht
Balance per book Addition Deduction Transfer Balance per book
as at In (out) as at
Dec. 31, 2020 Dec. 31, 2021
At cost
Office equipment 5,403,287.89 74,057.01 - - 5,477,344.80
Furniture and fixtures 19,272,927.98 - - - 19,272,927.98
Computer equipment 29,707,697.11 252,400.00 - - 29,960,097.11
Vehicles 4,429,000.00 - - - 4,429,000.00
Total 58,812,912.98 326,457.01 - - 59,139,369.99
(Less) Accumulated depreciation
Office equipment 4,652,106.57 355,464.66 - - 5,007,571.23
Furniture and fixtures 17,727,588.57 1,354,676.48 - - 19,082,265.05
Computer equipment 17,794,749.66 3,220,789.48 - - 21,015,539.14
Vehicles 1,912,392.69 561,011.70 - - 2,473,404.39
Total 42,086,837.49 5,491,942.32 - - 47,578,779.81
Equipment - net 16,726,075.49 11,5660,590.18
Baht
Balance per book Addition Deduction Transfer Balance per book
as at in (out) as at
Dec. 31, 2019 Dec, 31, 2020
At cost
Office equipment 5,116,183.11 287,104.78 g - - 5,403,287.89
Furniture and fixtures 19,272,927.98 - - - 19,272,927.98
Computer equipment 20,790,180.20 8,917,516.91 - - 29,707,697.11
Vehicles 4,429,000.00 - - - 4,429,000.00
Total 49,608,291.29 9,204,621.69 - - 58,812,912.98
(Less) Accumulated depreciation
Office equipment 3,857,611.88 794,494.69 - - 4,652,106.57
Furniture and fixtures 14,006,470.70 3,721,117.87 - - 17,727,588.57
Computer equipment 15,758,126.82 2,036,622.84 - - 17,794,749.66
Vehicles 1,321,375.09 591,017.60 - - 1,912,392.69
Total 34,943,584.49 7,143,253.00 - - 42,086,837.49
Equipment - net 14,664,706.80 16,726,075.49

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, equipment of the Association was fully depreciated but
still in use, amounting to a total cost of Baht 37.95 million and Baht 13.61 million, respectively.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Association has presented the list of purchased
equipment and the equipment funded by the Ministry of financial to be included as the same item.
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Intangible assets consisted of :

At cost
Computer software
Total
(Less) Accumulated amortization
Computer software

Computer software - net

At cost
Computer software
Total
({Less) Accumulated amortization
Computer software

Computer software - net

20

Baht
Balance per book Addition Deduction Transfer Balance per book
as at In (out) as at
Dec. 31, 2020 Dec. 31, 2021
66,358,148.88 34,500.00 - - 66,392,648.88
66,358,148.88 34,600.00 - - 66,392,648.88
64,744,924.53 723,293.83 - - 65,468,218.36
1,613,224.35 924,430.52
Baht
Balance per book Addition Deduction Transfer Balance per book
as at In (out) as at
Dec. 31, 2019 Dec. 31, 2020
66,338,148.88 20,000.00 - - 66,358,148.88
66,338,148.88 20,000.00 - - 66,358,148.88
63,858,716.69 886,207.84 - - 64,744,924.53

2,479,432.19

1,613,224.35

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, intangible assets of the Association were fully amortized but

still in use, amounting to a total cost of Baht 62.84 million and Baht 62.47 million, respectively.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Association has presented the list of purchased intangible

assets and the intangible assets funded by the Ministry of Finance to be included as the same item.



AIIHUA

DHARMNITI 21
THE THAI BOND MARKET ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
DECEMBER 31, 2021
8, OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other non-current assets consisted of:
Baht
2021 2020
Building deposit 1,470,096.00 1,470,096.00
Office equipment deposit 980,064.00 980,064.00
Others 31,929.96 38,490.72
Total 2,482,089.96 2,488,650.72
9. OTHER PAYABLE
Other payables consisted of:
Baht
2021 2020
Other payables 1,302,271.64 3,702,544.76
Advance cheque paid 60,000.00
Accrued expenses 2,105,169.59 1,857,027.39
Others 90,000.00 96,000.00
Total 3,497,441.23 5,715,572.15
10. DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred income consisted of :
Baht
2021 2020
Membership annual fees 2,501,429.00 2,560,060.25
Membership fees of data system - iBond 21,077,863.01 28,621,680.46
Membership fees of data system - iRisk 1,218,520.55 1,225,000.00
Service fees - MTM 5,843,205.48 4,972,333.34

Total

30,641,018.04

37,379,074.05
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11. DEFERRED ANNUAL FEE OF REGISTERED DEBT SECURITIES

Deferred annual fee of registered debt securities of :

Baht
2021 2020
Deferred annual fee of registered debt securities 111,866,392.56 102,562,233.61
(Less) Current portion (41,284,586.93) (37,843,827.84)
Total 70,581,805.63 64,718,405.77

Deferred annual fee of registered debt securities will be recorded the income fee in the
statement of income and expenditure according to the aging of the debt securities but not exceeding

for 7 years.

12. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities consisted of:

Baht
2021 2020
Withholding tax 6,414,610.24 4,993,752.44
Output tax - pending 16,281.48 34,905.82
Revenue department payable 1,326,404.46 863,485.44

Total 7,757,296.18 5,892,143.70
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13. PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

The details of provisions for employee benefit for the year ended December 31, 2021 and

2020 are shown as follows:

Baht
2021 2020
Provisions for employee benefit as at January 1, 19,288,073.15 17,451,444.52
Gain (profit) loss on remeasurement of defined employee
benefits 2,182,862.14

Current service costs 1,905,374.06 1,859,747.79
Financial costs 623,004.76 555,530.45
(Less) Employee benefit paid - (578,649.61)
Provisions for employee benefit as at December 31, 23,999,314.11 19,288,073.15

The expenditure recognized in the statement of income and expenditure for the year ended

December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted tor Baht 4,711,240.96 and Baht 1,836,628.63 respectively.

14. COMMITMENTS OF LEASE AGREEMENT
As at December 31, 2021 the Association has commitments of lease agreement as follows:-

The Thai Bond Market Association has entered into a memorandum of renewal the Office rental
agreement on 10st Floor of Tonson Tower Building with BB TV EQUITY Co., Ltd. lease agreement dated
January 17, 2019 period of 3 years from April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2022. The space rental fee, rental fee
of building equipment and central service fees and charged in the amount of Baht 9.80 million per annum.

As at December 31, 2021, the Association has an obligation to pay the rental fee, building

equipment rental fee and common service fee under such agreement as follows:
Million Baht

Payable within:
1 year 2.45
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15. AGREEMENTS OF PRIVATE FUND MANAGEMENT

15.1 The Association entered into a private fund management agreement with SCB Asset
Management Company Limited on June 1, 2019. This agreement is effective from the date of the
agreement to May 31, 2022. The term is 3 years and the agreement can be automatically
extended by 1 year each. Such company has rights, duties and responsibilities in managing
private funds as stipulated in the agreement and receives the fund management fees at the rate
stipulated in the agreement. Subsequently, on July 15, 2021, the Association issued a letter to
inform the closure of private funds under the held-to-maturity securities fund management
agreement. The letter of notice of private fund reduction according to the available-for-sale
securities fund management agreement is fo transfer all the sold amount to the Association's
bank account and accepting transfer of securities from One Asset Management Company
Limited.

152 The Association entered into a private fund management agreement with One Asset
Management Company Limited on May 24, 2019. This agreement is effective from June 1, 2019
to May 31, 2022. It is valid for 3 years and the term of the agreement is automatically renewed
for 1 year each. Such company has rights, duties and responsibilities in managing private funds
as stipulated in the agreement and receives the fund management fees at the rate stipulated in
the agreement. Subsequently, on July 15, 2021, the Association issued a letter to inform the
closure of the private fund by allowing all the proceeds from the sale to be deposited into the
Association's bank account and transfer unsold securities to SCB Asset Management Company

Limited.

16. PROVIDENT FUND
The Association has established a provident fund for its employees. Such fund is monthly
contributed by both the employees and the Association at the rates specified in the provident fund
regulations.
The fund is managed by Krungsri Asset Management Co., Ltd.
During the year 2021 and 2020, Baht 6.92 million and Baht 6.80 million, respectively has been

contributed to the fund by the Association.

17. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on March

10, 2022.



